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March 23, 1942

Dear Alfred:

I have received your letter of March 20th and
read it aloud (with the exception of the postscript) to
Philip Goodwin, and Abbott and Soby when I saw them this
morning.

We had a short conference in reference to the
plans for the garden, which I think are considerably
improved since you last saw them, but I had to leave so
soon that I did not get a chance to call you in. The
upshot of the conference was that Philip Goodwin would get
these plans in a little better shape and submit them to
the Executive Committee early next week.

I appreciate all that you say in reference to the
garden and I agree with a good deal of it, but the time
is so short that we will have to do something quickly
in order to be ready by the first of May, and it is too
late to consider getting another architect. I hope,
nowever, that you will bear in mind that these plans are
temporary and can easily be changed. In any event, it
would be foolish, I think, to try to lay out the ideal
garden in vewi of the fact that we shall, in all probability,
be building on some of this property in the not very distant
future.

Whatever may be the merits of the present layout
of the garden, it is certainly not an inviting place to sit
and Mrs. Rockefeller, who has contributed one-half of the
cost of this change, feels very strongly, as I do, that it
is important for us to make the garden attractive during the
coming summer, when so many people will be in town. Looking
forward to the future, I am very strongly of the opinion
that one of the most important things that the Museum can
do is to make this garden attractive. It would do more to
popularize the Museum than anything that I can think of and
I am sure that you will realize that underexisting conditions
our best hope of survival is to steadily broaden the basis
of our popular support.
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STEPHEN C. CLARK

149 BROADWAY
NEW YORK, N. Y. March 23, 1942

Dear Alfred:

T have received your letter of March 20th and
read it aloud (with the exception of the postseript) to
Philip Goodwin, and Abbott and Soby when I saw them this
morning.

We had a short conference in reference to the
plans for the garden, which I think are considerably
improved since you last saw them, but I had to leave so
soon that I did not get a chance to call you in. The
upshot of the conference was that Philip Goodwin would get
these plans in a little better shape and submit them to
the Executive Committee early next week.

I appreciate all that you say in reference to the
garden and I agree with a good deal of it, but the time
is so short that we will have to do something quickly
in order to be ready by the first of May, and it is too
late to consider getting another architect. I hope,
however, that you will bear in mind that these plans are
temporary and can easily be changed. In any event, it
would be foolisgh, I think, to try to lay out the ideal
garden in vewl of the fact that we shall, in all probability,
be building on some of this property in the not very distant
future.

Whatever may be the merits of the present layout
of the garden, it is certainly not an inviting place to sit
and Mrs. Rockefeller, who has contributed one-half of the
cost of this change, feels very strongly, as I do, that it
is important for us to make the garden attractive during the
coming summer, when so many people will be in town. Looking
forward to the future, I am very strongly of the opinion
that one of the most important things that the Museum can
do is to make this garden attractive. It would do more to
popularize the Museum than anything that I can think of and
T am sure that you will realize that underexisting conditlons
our best hope of survival is to steadily broaden the basis
of our popular support.
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Mr. Alfred H, Barr, Jr.

This letter is written rather h.stily but
I will be glad to talk this subject over with you in
more detail when you get back from your trip to the
West.

Sincerely yours,

e

Mr. Alfred H. Barr, Jr.
The Museum of Modern Art
11 "est 53rd Street

New York City
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To1 Mr, Stephen C, Clark - darch 20, 1942

L 'ty

possibility of extending it eastwerd as fer as the attendance requires. I

think 4t »ould be deploreble to give over the whole of the garden %o the rear

of the duseum to tables, or to structures snd planting grimerily intended for

& café, thowh I heartily spprove giving over s part to tbls purpese, providing
& major pert of the garden is mainteined for sculpture end temporary exhibitions.
. ELBLBILITI: In replanaing the garden, perticularly the part beaind
the building, it should be possible to convert the space iuto & café, or outdoor
concert suditorium, or film theetre, or simple dance thertre, or exhibition

space for architecture, or sculpture, or other material (e.g, the Mexican show),

This would mesn that permanent planting covering the whole cres in back of the
building should be avoided. If shade is necesscry for the tebles, umbrellas
would be better than trees.

BINTER APPEARANCE: It should be kept in mind thet the parden will be
of no use for sitting outdoore during some seven months so thet permanent fix-
tures priserily intended for the café should be concentrated at the west end,
leaving the space in back of the building for sculpture or mrchitecture during
the other seven months of the yeer,
¥ . BESURFACING: I am heartily in fever of resurfecing the gerden in part
or entirely, since the gravel is very unsstisfactery, but some perts of the
garden need not be resurfeced. Instead well surfaced paths could be leid, or
one end, perhups the eastern end, could be left mas it is. A considerable section
of the eastern end is already laid out in concrete.

I sm in favor of two or three different shades of asphalt, providing
the design is carefully studied.

LDEAINAGE: If asphalt is substituted for gravel some new grading may
have to be dome, since a good deal of water now accumulates ct the rear of the

building, This condition would be much worse with an asphall surfsce., Douglas
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The Museum of Modern Art Archives, NY

Toi Mr. Stephea C. Clark

Baxter reports that there is a serious ssount of seepage through the sellar

&ﬂq&n Huaeun,

Sons & memmnaumummt
saterisl as possitle, OGrmns L» probably lapossible. The more Fhodedendrons
and evergreens we have the better for the winler appesrsuce.

Uincerely,

Lamne s b

-
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Merch 20, 1842

re Clark:
This is & postseript to my longer letter on the garden plaa.

I hope that you will mot thiak me over-critical, but I surt in all
honeety let you knaw that I think that Philip Goodwin's plan for the garden
~ was from the point of view of design very feeble indeed. 1t showed no grasp
of modern foras at sllj the only positive elemcnts im it seened vestiges of

his Beaux Arts past and his memory of popular café gardens in Hurope - I
refer sspecially to the very dull layout of treea, which are used in French

café gardens as en economical system of giving shade, rether than as something
handsome to look st, I do not think sny Beeux Arts regulsrity of symmetry

is desirsble in this gerden, which should follow the English garden tredition
of asymmetry and curved forms, psrticularly as it would exist in the center
of & boringly rectilinear city plan., Whatever the faults of the preseat plan,
and these are in large part due to economy, it does have & style #nd a careful
study of the relation of backgrounds and spaces to sculpture. It also has a
good deal of interest seen from above, which is important,

A8 the purposes of the garden are expanded by the café plan, ete., the
need for a fine design ie in no way diminighed. I would like to propose that
ve ask that someone be brought in to work with Philip Goodwin on ths deeign,
perhaps one of the three following:
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Tot Mr. Stephen C, Clark March 20, 1942

1, Christopher Tunnard, He is probably the most brilliant young landscape
architect and garden designer in the country. He teaches at the Harvard
Architectural 8chool.

2. Alice Carson, Assistant to Elliot Noyes, Graduate of the Cambridge School
of Lendscape Architecture, she is a good designer and has had a good deal of
experience since graduation. Working with her we could keep the design "in
the family".

“o Ed Stone.

I am devoted to Philip Goodwln, who is one of the kindest and most
generous people I know, but I am sorry to sey I do not believe in his capacity
as a designer in the modern spirit and was really shocked by the leyout we
looked at together on Wednesday. Naturally this letter is extremely confidential
for I wouldn't want to hurt Phil's feelings.

Sincerely,

Mr. Stephen C, Clark
148 Broadway
New York, N. I,

AHBiva






